
           

AD HOC COMMITTEE ON
SUSTAINABILITY 

May 7, 2018
12:30 P.M.

651 Pine Street, Room 101, Martinez

Supervisor John Gioia, Chair
Supervisor Federal D. Glover, Vice Chair

Agenda
Items:

Items may be taken out of order based on the business of the day and preference
of the Committee

             

1. Introductions
 

2.   APPROVE Record of Action for meeting for March 26, 2018, meeting of the Ad Hoc
Committee on Sustainability.

 

3. Public comment on any item under the jurisdiction of the Committee and not on this
agenda (speakers may be limited to three minutes).

 

4.   INTERVIEW applicants for the At-Large, Education/Research seat on the
Sustainability Commission. 

 

5.   PROVIDE DIRECTION to staff regarding development of a Distributed Energy
Resource Plan for County facilities.

 

6.   CONSIDER staff report on strategies for reducing greenhouse gas emissions associated
with warehouse facilities in the unincorporated County and PROVIDE DIRECTION.

 

7.   DISCUSS and RECOMMEND to the Board of Supervisors a candidate for the
At-Large, Education/Research seat on the Sustainability Commission

 

8.   RECEIVE report from the Contra Costa County Sustainability Commission Chair.
 

9.   RECEIVE update from the County’s Sustainability Coordinator.
 

10. The next meeting is currently scheduled for July 23, 2018, 12:30 PM.
 

11. Adjourn
 



The Ad Hoc Committee on Sustainability will provide reasonable accommodations for persons with disabilities planning to
attend Ad Hoc Committee on Sustainability meetings. Contact the staff person listed below at least 72 hours before the meeting. 

Any disclosable public records related to an open session item on a regular meeting agenda and distributed by the County to a
majority of members of the Ad Hoc Committee on Sustainability less than 96 hours prior to that meeting are available for public
inspection at 651 Pine Street, 1st floor, during normal business hours. 

Public comment may be submitted via electronic mail on agenda items at least one full work day prior to the published meeting
time. 
Glossary of Acronyms, Abbreviations, and other Terms (in alphabetical order): Contra Costa County has a policy of making limited use of acronyms,
abbreviations, and industry-specific language in meetings of its Board of Supervisors and Committees. Following is a list of commonly used abbreviations that
may appear in presentations and written materials at meetings of the Ad Hoc Sustainability Committee:

AB Assembly Bill 
ABAG Association of Bay Area Governments
ACA Assembly Constitutional Amendment 
ADA Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990
BAAQMD Bay Area Air Quality Management District 
BART Bay Area Rapid Transit District
BAYREN Bay Area Regional Energy Network
BCDC Bay Conservation & Development Commission 
BDCP Bay-Delta Conservation Plan
BGO Better Government Ordinance (Contra Costa County) 
BOS Board of Supervisors
CALTRANS California Department of Transportation 
CARB California Air Resources Board
CAO County Administrative Officer or Office 
CAP Climate Action Plan
CCA Community Choice 
CCTA Contra Costa Transportation Authority
CCWD Contra Costa Water District 
CDBG Community Development Block Grant
CEC California Energy Commission
CEQA California Environmental Quality Act 
CPUC California Public Utilities Commission 
CSA County Service Area 
CSAC California State Association of Counties
DCD Contra Costa CountyDept.of Conservation & Development 
EBEW East Bay Energy Watch
EBMUD East Bay Municipal Utility District 
EIR Environmental Impact Report (a state requirement)
EIS Environmental Impact Statement (a federal requirement) 
FEMA Federal Emergency Management Agency
FTE Full Time Equivalent 
FY Fiscal Year
GGRF Greenhouse Gas Reduction Funds
GHG Greenhouse Gas 
GIS Geographic Information System 
HOT High-Occupancy/Toll
HOV High-Occupancy-Vehicle 
HSD Contra Costa County Health Services Department
IPM Integrated Pest Management
JPA/JEPA Joint (Exercise of) Powers Authority or Agreement 
LAFCo Local Agency Formation Commission 
LCC League of California Cities
LTMS Long-Term Management Strategy 
MAC Municipal Advisory Council 
MBE Minority Business Enterprise 
MOA Memorandum of Agreement
MOE Maintenance of Effort 
MOU Memorandum of Understanding
MTC Metropolitan Transportation Commission 
NACo National Association of Counties
NEPA National Environmental Protection Act 
PDA Priority Development Area
PV Photovoltaicv 
PWD Contra Costa County Public Works Department
RDA Redevelopment Agency or Area 
RFI Request For Information
RFP Request For Proposals 
RFQ Request For Qualifications
SB Senate Bill 
SBE Small Business Enterprise
SGC Strategic Growth Council 
TWIC Transportation, Water, and Infrastructure Committee



U.S. EPA United States Environmental Protection Agency 
VMT Vehicle Miles Travel 
WBE Women-Owned Business Enterprise

For Additional Information Contact:
Jody London, Sustainability Coordinator

Phone: (925) 674-7871
Jody.London@dcd.cccounty.us



AD HOC COMMITTEE ON
SUSTAINABILITY   2.           

Meeting Date: 05/07/2018  

Subject: APPROVE Record of Action for meeting for March 26, 2018, meeting of
the Ad Hoc Committee on Sustainability. 

Department: Conservation & Development
Referral No.: N/A  

Referral Name: N/A 
Presenter: Jody London, DCD Contact: Jody London (925)674-7871

Referral History:
County Ordinance (Better Government Ordinance 95-6, Article 25-205 [d]) requires that each
County body keep a record of its meetings. Though the record need not be verbatim, it must
accurately reflect the agenda and the decisions made in the meeting.

Referral Update:
Any handouts or printed copies of testimony distributed at the meeting will be attached to this
meeting record. Links to the agenda and minutes will be made available at the Committee web
page, http://www.contracosta.ca.gov/6229/Sustainability.

Recommendation(s)/Next Step(s):
Staff recommends approval of the attached Record of Action for the March 26, 2018, meeting of
the Ad Hoc Committee on Sustainability with any necessary corrections.

Fiscal Impact (if any):
N/A

Attachments
01-22-18 SUS-COMM Mtg Minutes

http://www.contracosta.ca.gov/6229/Sustainability


RECORD OF ACTION
AD HOC COMMITTEE ON

SUSTAINABILITY 

  January 22, 2018
12:30 P.M.

651 Pine Street, Room 101, Martinez
 

Supervisor John Gioia, Chair
Supervisor Federal D. Glover, Vice Chair

Agenda Items: Items may be taken out of order based on the business of the day and preference of the Committee

 

Present: John Gioia, Chair   
  Federal D. Glover, Vice Chair   
     

Staff Present: Jill Ray, BOS District 2 
Frank DiMassa, Energy Manager, Public Works Department 
Michael Kent, Hazardous Materials Ombudsman, Health Services
Department 
Jody London, Sustainability Coordinator 

Attendees: Jan Warren 

Shoshana Wechsler 
Victoria Smith 
Mark Thomson 
J.R. Killigrew 
Howdy Goudey 
Charles Davidson 

 

               

1. Introductions
 

2. Staff recommends approval of the attached Record of Action for the November 13,
2018, meeting of the Ad Hoc Committee on Sustainability with any necessary
corrections.

The Record of Action was approved as submitted.

  

 
  Vice Chair Federal D. Glover,   
 

AYE: Chair John Gioia, Vice Chair Federal D. Glover 
Passed 



3. Public comment on any item under the jurisdiction of the Committee and not on this
agenda (speakers may be limited to three minutes).

There was no public comment. 
 

4. RECEIVE information on costs and benefits of enrolling in MCE Deep Green and an
evaluation of an alternative course of action to achieve Climate Action Plan goals and
PROVIDE DIRECTION regarding next steps. 

J.R. Killigrew, Community Development Manager with MCE, provided an update on the
timeline for switching customers to MCE service. The first round of ads will be posted online in
January, with notices going to customers in February and March. The actual switch to MCE
service will occur as customers' meters are read in April. There will be two more notices mailed
to customers after the switch. MCE is attending as many community events as possible. Jody
London noted that MCE is providing training sessions for city and County staff who may
receive questions from the public. MCE also is establishing three Community Leadership
Advisory Groups across the County.

Frank DiMassa provided a report on the advantages and costs of switching all eligible County
accounts to MCE's Deep Green service. DiMassa recommends the County wait for one year
before considering Deep Green. The County should use that time to develop and implement a
distributed energy resource (DER) plan. This plan would include: 

Grid-connected renewable energy resources, especially solar and energy efficiency
Energy storage
Electric vehicles
Demand response

DiMassa explained that the County currently owns or has power purchase agreements (PPAs)
for a little over 5 megawatts (MW) of solar energy. Some of those systems were installed in 2002
and are being taken offline.

In December the Board authorized the Department of Public Works to take advantage of an
opportunity created by the California Public Utilities Commission for schools and municipalities
to sign up for interconnection agreements for solar installations under the current tariff, before
it changes. The County submitted 12 interconnection agreements for 5 MW.

Specific to MCE's Deep Green service, the Board would need to budget for the additional cost,
which is estimated to be about $404,000. Public Works estimates that purchasing solar power
under a power purchase agreement would save the County $412,000 against current PG&E
rates. DiMassa recommends that the County install the solar projects, which will reduce the
amount of electricity the County is purchasing, and then re-evaluate the Deep Green option.
DiMassa also recommends that the Ad Hoc Committee direct staff to develop a Distributed
Energy Resources Plan, which could be presented at the Committee's March 26 meeting. 

  

 

5. RECEIVE report on preparation of an Electric Vehicle Readiness Blueprint.

Jody London reported that County staff is working with the Contra Costa Transportation
Authority (CCTA) on two grant applications for funding to support development of an Electric
Vehicle Readiness Blueprint. The grant applications are due in February. 

  

 

6. RECEIVE report from the Contra Costa County Sustainability Commission Chair.   



6. RECEIVE report from the Contra Costa County Sustainability Commission Chair.

Victoria Smith reviewed the Sustainability Commission's annual report and work plan, which
were approved by the Board of Supervisors earlier in January. Smith reported that individual
Commission members are investigating issues of interest to them and making recommendations
to the Commission for future action. Smith pointed out the tracking tool the Sustainability
Commission is using to monitor progress in meeting Climate Action Plan goals.

Smith suggested there are issues on which the Board may want to receive input from the
Sustainability Commission before it takes action, for example taking service under MCE's Deep
Green tariff. 

  

 

7. RECEIVE update on Renewable Resource Potential Study. 

Jody London reported that staff is completing contract negotiations with Meister Consultants
Group, a Cadmus company, and hopes to begin work soon. 

  

 

8. RECEIVE update from the County’s Sustainability Coordinator.

Jody London reviewed the items in the written report included with the agenda. 

Michael Kent reported that the Hazardous Materials Commission has been talking about school
siting. Kent noted the Resilient by Design challenge has chosen North Richmond for a design
project; an advisory group is beginning to meet in relation to that project. Kent also noted the
regional Adapting to Rising Tides (ART) study being performed by the Bay Conservation and
Development Commission. He confirmed with the Committee that governance issues being
discussed in the regional ART process should be brought to the Ad Hoc Committee on
Sustainability.

Charles Davidson noted that the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency is determining whether
the Selby Slag Superfund site can be repurposed.

  

 

9. The next meeting is currently scheduled for Monday, March 26, 2018, 12:30 p.m.
 

10. Adjourn

 

The Ad Hoc Committee on Sustainability will provide reasonable accommodations for persons with disabilities planning to attend Ad Hoc
Committee on Sustainability meetings. Contact the staff person listed below at least 72 hours before the meeting. 

Any disclosable public records related to an open session item on a regular meeting agenda and distributed by the County to a majority of
members of the Ad Hoc Committee on Sustainability less than 96 hours prior to that meeting are available for public inspection at 651 Pine
Street, 1st floor, during normal business hours. 

Public comment may be submitted via electronic mail on agenda items at least one full work day prior to the published meeting time. 

For Additional Information Contact:
Jody London, Sustainability Coordinator

Phone: (925) 674-7871
Jody.London@dcd.cccounty.us



AD HOC COMMITTEE ON
SUSTAINABILITY   4.           

Meeting Date: 05/07/2018  

Subject: INTERVIEW candidates for the vacancy in the At-Large,
Education/Research seat on the Sustainability Commission.

Submitted For: John Kopchik, Director, Conservation & Development Department 
Department: Conservation & Development
Referral No.: N/A  

Referral Name: N/A 
Presenter: Jody London, DCD Contact: Jody London (925) 674-7871

Referral History:
On November 15, 2016, the Board of Supervisors approved the creation of the Contra Costa
County Sustainability Commission. The function of the Sustainability Commission is to:

Provide advice to staff and the Board on successful implementation of the Climate Action
Plan, including suggestions on how that work can be performed more efficiently and
effectively.
Advise the Board on opportunities to realize equity and fairness across the diverse
communities of Contra Costa County in sustainability programs that support the Climate
Action Plan.
Provide suggestions to staff and the Board on how to better engage Contra Costa County
residents and businesses on sustainability issues and implementation of the Climate Action
Plan.

On March 14, 2017, the Board of Supervisors amended the composition of the Sustainability
Commission so that there are eleven members and five alternates, selected as follows:

Five District representatives nominated by individual members of the Board of Supervisors
(representatives must be a resident of that district);
Five District alternates nominated by individual members of the Board of Supervisors
(alternates must be a resident of that district);
Two members representing community groups whose mission includes sustainability and/or
environmental issues;
Two members representing commercial groups or organizations whose business focuses on
sustainability and/or environmental issues;
One member representing environmental justice issues and who lives in a disadvantaged
community; and



One member who is a resident of Contra Costa County and represents an education
institution in Contra Costa County or a research institution in Contra Costa or a neighboring
County.

On March 14, 2017, the Board of Supervisors appointed Scott Warfe to the Education/Research
seat on the County’s Sustainability Commission. On February 27, 2018, Mr. Warfe notified the
County Sustainability Coordinator that he is no longer able to serve on the Sustainability
Commission. Consistent with the Sustainability Commission Bylaws, the Sustainability
Coordinator shared this information with the Clerk of the Board and the Chair of the
Sustainability Commission. On March 20, 2018, the Board of Supervisors declared a vacancy on
the Sustainability Commission and directed the Clerk of the Board to post it.

Referral Update:
The Clerk of the Board posted the Sustainability Commission vacancy in March 2018. The
vacancy was advertised on the County's web site and circulated through social media and direct
outreach to the Sustainability Commission and individuals who are on the service lists for the Ad
Hoc Committee on Sustainability and the Sustainability Commission. The application deadline
was April 24, 2018. Three people applied for the At-Large, Education and Research seat.
Attachment A contains the applications received by the Clerk of the Board, with personal contact
information redacted. 

Recommendation(s)/Next Step(s):
INTERVIEW candidates for the At-Large, Education/Research seat on the Contra Costa County
Sustainability Commission.

Fiscal Impact (if any):
None. 

Attachments
Susan Rideout Application
Pierre Bull Application
Kimberly Hazard Application



















































AD HOC COMMITTEE ON SUSTAINABILITY   5.           
Meeting Date: 05/07/2018  

Subject: PROVIDE DIRECTION to staff regarding development of a Distributed
Energy Resource Plan for County facilities. 

Submitted For: Jody London, Sustainability Coordinator 
Department: Conservation & Development
Referral No.: N/A  

Referral Name: N/A 
Presenter: Frank Di Massa, CCC Public Works

Dept.
Contact: Jody London (925)674-7871

Referral History:
At the Board of Supervisors Ad Hoc Committee on Sustainability meeting of January 22, 2018,
Public Works representatives were directed to provide additional information on the proposed
Contra Costa County Distributed Energy Resources (DER) Plan. In response, the attached brief
report provides a definition of DER and presents Public Works' proposed DER goals and
implementation strategy.

Referral Update:
Public Works will present the Draft DER Plan to the Ad Hoc Committee on Sustainability for
comment, suggestion, and direction.

Recommendation(s)/Next Step(s):
PROVIDE DIRECTION to staff regarding development of a Distributed Energy Resource Plan
for County facilities.

Fiscal Impact (if any):
No immediate impact. As envisioned, implementation of the DER plan elements will result in
substantial rebates from PG&E and MCE and positive cash flow DER investments financed
through utility bill savings.

Attachments
DER Plan - Draft



Public Works Capital Projects  Page 1 
 

Contra Costa County Distributed Energy Resources Plan  
 At the Board of Supervisors Ad Hoc Committee on Sustainability meeting of January 22, 2018, Public 
Works representatives were directed to provide additional information on the proposed Contra Costa 
County Distributed Energy Resources Plan.  In response, this brief report provides a definition of DER 
and presents Public Works proposed goals and implementation strategy.   

What is Distributed Energy Resources (DER)? 
The U.S. Department of Energy (DOE) envisions a resilient, secure, resource efficient and 
environmentally sustainable “Smart” electric utility grid.  As envisioned, the Smart Grid relies on the 
internet of things (IoT)1 and supports the integration of Distributed Energy Resources. The California 
Energy Commission (CEC) defines DER as grid-connected distributed renewable energy systems, energy 
efficiency (EE), energy storage (ES), electric vehicles (EV), and demand response (DR) supported by a 
wide-ranging suite of policies adopted by the California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC).    

 

Prime examples of DER technologies include parking lot canopy solar PV systems, LED lighting and 
advanced building controls, lithium-ion battery storage systems, electric vehicle supply equipment 
(EVSE) to charge vehicles such as the Chevy Bolt and Nissan Leaf, and demand response systems that 
automatically respond to utility calls for load reduction by relaxing cooling system set points, dimming 
lights and turning off unessential equipment to relieve the burden on the grid during periods of capacity 
constraint.   

Distributed Energy Resources in Contra Costa County Operations 
Contra Costa County leaders realize that aggressively pursuing implementation of DER in County 
facilities is the best way to meet the statutory renewable energy goals and the carbon reduction 
requirements of SB350 (Clean Energy & Pollution Reduction Act) and the objectives of the County’s 
Climate Action Plan.  

                                                           
1 The IoT is the interconnection via the Internet of computing devices embedded in everyday objects, enabling them to send and receive data. 

Distributed Energy Resources (DER) consists of five elements as follows: 

1. PV Parking Lot Canopy and Building Integrated Photovoltaics 
2. EE  Energy Efficiency  HVAC, Controls, Lighting modernization 
3. ES  Energy Storage – Lithium ion and flow battery systems for load management 
4. EV Electric Vehicle Charging Systems 
5. ADR Automated Demand Response systems tied to PG&E rate reduction program 



Public Works Capital Projects  Page 2 
 

The DER Plan that follows has been prepared with input and direction from the Public Works 
Department staff, including Facility Maintenance Directors and Deputy Directors.   

Photovoltaics (PV)  
The Department of Public Works has issued an RFQ to identify and short-list solar developers capable of 
installing the PV systems listed in Figure 1 below under a power purchase agreement (PPA) or other 
financial arrangement that is positive cash flow for the County beginning in year 1 and remaining 
positive throughout the contract or lease period.  The selected solar developer must also have expertise 
and practical experience with the installation of EV Chargers and Energy Storage in conjunction with PV.  

 

Figure 1: Facilities with grandfathered Interconnection Agreements (IAs) 

FY18/19 Goal: The Department of Public Works anticipates that between 5 MW or more of solar 
capacity will be installed in FY18/19 generating over 6,000,000 kWh of clean renewable energy per year 
with an associated annual GHG reduction of 1,440 metric tons CO2.   

Additional PV Activities 
• Develop a zero net energy (ZNE) pilot project, preferably at a County facility located in a 

disadvantaged community. The focus will be on public education and job development training 
for local electricians.  

• Provide technical support and related assistance to DCD with the Renewable Resources 
Potential study being performed with support from Cadmus Consulting.  

• Assist DCD in evaluating permit applications for megawatt class merchant solar power plants 
and large warehouse solar projects.   

• Explore partnership possibilities with MCE, Solar Richmond, Richmond Build and Grid 
Alternatives to build new PV systems in the County with a focus on community solar projects 
that provide the greatest benefit to disadvantaged communities.  



Public Works Capital Projects  Page 3 
 

Energy Efficiency 
The Department of Public Works has issued an RFQ to identify and place on a short-list Energy Service 
Companies (ESCos) capable of generating performance contracts for high value, short payback period 
energy efficiency measures at selected facilities using PG&E on-bill financing (OBF) as the fund source.    

FY18/19 Goal: The Department of Public Works anticipates that approximately $4,000,000 (PG&E OBF 
max for municipalities) in energy efficiency improvements will be installed and operational in FY18/19. 

Electric Vehicles 
A recent survey (February, 2018) of County employees with 1221 respondents provided the following 
information: 

1. 126 County employees currently own electric vehicles 
2. 473 indicated that they are interested in purchasing a plug-in electric or hybrid vehicle 
3. 880 (75 % of respondents) support the installation of EV chargers at the facility where they work 
4. 763 (66 % of respondents) stated that they would be more likely to purchase an electric vehicle 

if there were EV chargers at the workplace 

It appears that the most economical and timely method of installing EV chargers is PG&E’s EV Charge 
Network Program whereby PG&E designs and installs EV Charging infrastructure (minimum of ten 
chargers) at no cost to the building owner.  PG&E also provides a 25% rebate for the EV charger units 
and MCE has a proposed program in place to pay for half of the remaining cost of the chargers via a 
rebate.  The PG&E program requires the County to enter into both a ten year easement and a 
contractual agreement. Public Works has prepared a Board Order requesting Board approval to allow 
Public Works to enter agreements with PG&E under the EV Charge Network Program.   

Initial facilities where there is sufficient demand and that can gain the greatest benefit from PG&E’s 
program include but are not limited to: 

• 30 Muir 
• 595/597 Center 
• 4549 Delta Fair 
• 50 Douglas 

With the Board’s approval, the County will join the California Air Resources Board’s (CARB) Low Carbon 
Fuel Standard (LCFS) program.  County participation in this program will create a source of ongoing 
revenue to offset the cost of EV charging infrastructure and/or to allow a lower price for electricity 
consumed by EV drivers that use County facilities.   

FY18/19 Goal: The Department of Public Works anticipates that the County will install 75 to 100 Level 22 
EV chargers in FY18/19.  Many of these chargers will be public facing and therefore usable by both the 
public and County employees.  

                                                           
2 Level 2 chargers are the most commonly used and accessible to all EV on the road today 



Public Works Capital Projects  Page 4 
 

Energy Storage 
The solar developer selected through the RFQ process will evaluate the eleven facilities listed in Figure 1 
to determine if and where energy storage is cost effective.   

FY18/19 Goal: The Department of Public Works anticipates that one or more of the facilities listed in 
Figure 1 will be a candidate site for a cost-effective energy storage system that can be financed under a 
power purchase agreement in conjunction with PV. The County intends to install an energy storage 
system at the Zero Net Energy Retrofit Pilot Project site mentioned above.   

Automated Demand Response 
The County is working with PG&E’s third-party contractor to identify facilities that will gain economic 
benefit by participating in PG&E’s automated demand response program which provides rate relief to 
participants by allowing customers to curtail energy usage during periods of high electricity demand.  
PG&E’s automated demand response program also provides rebates for hardware and no-cost technical 
support.   

In a parallel activity the County is working with its building management systems contractor to upgrade 
the County’s building management systems (BMS) software so that it can interface with PG&E 
automated demand response equipment, optimize operations, reduce energy consumption, and allow 
the County to better monitor and understand building energy consumption and electrical and 
mechanical systems’ performance on a County-wide basis.   

FY18/19 Goal: Utilize PG&E’s incentive program to the extent possible.  It is projected that the County 
will receive $270,000 in rebates for hardware that will allow sixty-four (64) County facilities to 
participate in PG&E ADR programs.    

Direction from the Board 
Public Works seeks input, direction and approval from the Board to modify or expand the DER plan as 
needed and to proceed with the implementation strategies.  

 

Figure 2: Contra Costa County has established itself as a leader in DER, as illustrated by this Google 
image showing a high penetration of parking lot canopy PV systems and EV chargers at a County 
complex that provides vital services to the public.  



AD HOC COMMITTEE ON SUSTAINABILITY   6.           
Meeting Date: 05/07/2018  

Subject: CONSIDER staff report on strategies for reducing greenhouse gas emissions
associated with warehouse facilities in the unincorporated County

Department: Conservation & Development
Referral No.: N/A  

Referral Name: N/A 
Presenter: Brian Balbas, CCC Public Works

Dept.
Contact: Jody London (925)674-7871

Referral History:
The Contra Costa County Climate Action Plan (2015) establishes goals for reducing emissions of
greenhouse gases in the transportation sector and increasing the amount of renewable energy
generated in Contra Costa County. The Climate Action Plan discusses prohibiting unnecessary
idling of off-road and heavy equipment. It also establishes goals for zero net energy construction
and installing rooftop energy systems on commercial buildings, with a focus on warehouses or
other structures with large surface area roofs.

The Bay Area Air Quality Management District has adopted the following Best Management
Practices aimed at limiting emissions of greenhouse gases and other pollutants during a project's
construction phase. DCD staff includes these measures in project approvals as appropriates:

Air Quality 

The following Bay Area Air Quality Management District, Basic Construction mitigation
measures shall be implemented during project construction and shall be included on all
construction plans: 

All exposed surfaces (e.g., parking areas, staging areas, soil piles, graded areas, and
unpaved access roads) shall be watered two times per day.

a.

All haul trucks transporting soil, sand or other loose material off-site shall be covered.b.
all visible mud or dirt track-out onto adjacent public roads shall be removed using wet
power vacuum street sweepers at least once per day. The use of dry power sweeping is
prohibited.

c.

Sweep daily (with water sweepers) all paved access roads, parking areas and staging
areas at construction sites.

d.

Hydroseed or apply (non-toxic) soil stabilizers to inactive construction areas
(previously graded areas inactive for ten days or more).

e.

Enclose, cover, water twice daily or apply (non-toxic) soil binders to exposed
stockpiles (dirt, sand, etc.).

f.

Install sandbags or other erosion control measures to prevent silt runoff to publicg.

1.



Install sandbags or other erosion control measures to prevent silt runoff to public
roadways.

g.

Replant vegetation in disturbed areas as quickly as possible.h.
All vehicle speeds on unpaved roads shall be limited to 15 mph.i.
All roadways, driveways and sidewalks to be paved shall be completed as soon as
possible. Building pads shall be laid as soon as possible after grading unless seeding or
soil binders are used.

j.

Idling times shall be minimized either by shutting equipment off when not in use or
reducing the maximum idling time to 5 minutes (as required by the California airborne
toxics control measure Title 13, Section 2485 of California Code of Regulations
[CCR]). Clear signage shall be provided for construction workers at all access points.

k.

All construction equipment shall be maintained and properly in tuned in accordance
with manufacturer's specifications. All equipment shall be checked by a certified
mechanic and determined to be running in proper condition prior to operation.

l.

Post publicly visible sign with the telephone number and person to contact at the lead
agency regarding dust complaints. This person shall respond and take corrective action
within 48 hours. The Air District's phone number shall also be visible to ensure
compliance with applicable regulations.

m.

The following are examples of mitigation measures developed for recent projects that have
potential to generate substantial amounts of air pollutants: 

Implement the following measures during all phases of the project. 
30 days prior to applying for building permits for tenant improvement plans, the
applicant/tenant shall submit plans for review and approval of CDD staff, which
provide for a trucker's lounge appropriately sized for the square-footage/use intended
for the space being occupied.

a.

Applicant/tenant shall electrify all loading docks to accommodate diesel-powered
Transport Refrigeration Units (and similar pieces of equipment) and future use of
electric trucks. both semi-trucks and delivery trucks (e.g., installation of conduit
specifically designated for truck charging equipment in the future).

b.

All Transportation Refrigeration Units and similar pieces of equipment shall be
plugged-in as soon as feasibly possible when entering the property.

c.

Applicant/tenant shall inform all truck drivers that idling is strictly prohibited on the
warehouse property and adjacent streets in North Richmond.

d.

Applicant/tenant shall periodically sweep warehouse property to remove road dust/tire
wear/brake dust in parking lots.

e.

Applicant/tenant shall not use diesel back-up generators on property unless absolutely
necessary. If absolutely necessary, generators shall have Best Available Control
Technology (BACT) that meets CARB's Tier 4 emission standards or meet the most
stringent in-use standard, whichever has the least emissions.

f.

Applicant/tenant shall use "clean fleet" (e.g., Zero or very low emissions, high
efficiency, electric and/or alternative fuel vehicles) to the maximum extent possible. At
minimum, the applicant/tenant shall demonstrate compliance to the satisfaction of CD
staff, that all CARB requirements to control emissions from diesel engines have been
met.

g.

Install sound walls and/or vegetation, when appropriates, to effectively block diesel
emissions form nearby sensitive receptors (e.g., schools and residential neighborhoods).

h.

Within 30-days of occupancy, applicant/tenant shall demonstrate to the satisfaction of
CDD staff, that zero-emission technology forklifts (e.g., battery electric and hydrogen

i.

2.



fuel cell) are being used for all operations (both indoor and outdoor) on the subject
property.

Solar Power 

Prior to building permit issuance, the applicant shall submit evidence to CDD staff for
review and approval, demonstrating that the subject buildings have been made solar ready
by meeting exceeding the current California Building Code (e.g., structurally able to support
solar panels on roofs, appropriately sized electrical panels and conduit, etc.).

3.

The project sponsor shall include with the tenant improvement building permit application,
sufficient solar panels to provide power for the tenant's base power use. Project sponsor shall
include analysis of projected power requirements and generating capacity for solar
installation. Completion of the solar project will be a condition of the occupancy of the
tenant's space. The minimum amount of solar installed will be sufficient for warehouse use
which is .06ks/SF or XXX kw.

4.

Prior to issuance of the initial building permit, the applicant shall also pay the Contra Costa
County, Department of Conservation and Development, Current Planning Division, a flat
not-to-exceed amount of $XXX as its fair share contribution towards the cost of planning
and/or constructing a Solar Project for the benefit of the North Richmond area. The Solar
Project must benefit North Richmond residents as mitigation for the constructions of a ware
house project with its associated emissions and truck traffic. The County will work with the
District One Supervisor and the North Richmond Community to define and develop the
Solar Project.

5.

Referral Update:
As the County has considered recent individual applications for new warehouse facilities, the
County has included in conditions of approval requirements that will mitigate emissions from the
operations of those facilities. The County also has included requirements for solar energy on
warehouse rooftops and other measures that have the potential to increase the amount of
renewable energy generated in Contra Costa County.

Recommendation(s)/Next Step(s):
CONSIDER staff report on strategies for reducing greenhouse gas emissions associated with
warehouse facilities in the unincorporated County and PROVIDE DIRECTION.

Fiscal Impact (if any):
No impact to the General Fund at this time.

Attachments
No file(s) attached.



AD HOC COMMITTEE ON
SUSTAINABILITY   7.           

Meeting Date: 05/07/2018  

Subject: DISCUSS and RECOMMEND to the Board of Supervisors a candidate for
the At-Large, Education/Research seat on the Sustainability Commission

Submitted For: John Kopchik, Director, Conservation & Development Department 
Department: Conservation & Development
Referral No.:  

Referral Name: 
Presenter: Contact: Jody London, 925-674-7871

Referral History:
On March 14, 2017, the Board of Supervisors appointed Scott Warfe to the Education/Research
seat on the County's Sustainability Commission. This seat is designated for one member who is a
resident of Contra Costa County and represents an education institution in Contra Costa County
or a research institution in Contra Costa or a neighboring County. On February 25, 2018, Mr.
Warfe notified the County Sustainability Coordinator that he is no longer able to serve on the
Sustainability Commission. The Ad Hoc Committee on Sustainability has the responsibility of
recommending candidates for vacancies on the Sustainability Commission.

Referral Update:
The Clerk of the Board posted the vacancy on the Sustainability Commission in March 2018. The
vacancy was advertised on the County's web page and circulated through social media and direct
outreach to the Sustainability Commission and individuals who are on the service lists for the Ad
Hoc Committee on Sustainability and the Sustainability Commission. The application deadline
was April 24, 2018. Three people applied for the At-Large, Education/Research seat. The Ad Hoc
Committee on Sustainability interviewed candidates for this seat earlier in the agenda for this
meeting. 

Recommendation(s)/Next Step(s):
DISCUSS and RECOMMEND to the Board of Supervisors candidates for the At-Large,
Education/Research seat on the Contra Costa County Sustainability Commission.

Fiscal Impact (if any):
None.

Attachments



No file(s) attached.



AD HOC COMMITTEE ON SUSTAINABILITY   8.           
Meeting Date: 05/07/2018  

Subject: RECEIVE Report from Sustainability Commission Chair.
Submitted For: John Kopchik, Director, Conservation & Development Department 
Department: Conservation & Development
Referral No.: N/A  

Referral Name: N/A 
Presenter: Victoria Smith, Sustainability Chair Contact: Jody London (925)674-7871

Referral History:
The Ad Hoc Committee on Sustainability has asked the Sustainability Commission to provide a
report on its deliberations at each Committee meeting.

Referral Update:
N/A.

Recommendation(s)/Next Step(s):
RECEIVE report from the Contra Costa County Sustainability Commission Chair.

Fiscal Impact (if any):
N/A

Attachments
No file(s) attached.



AD HOC COMMITTEE ON SUSTAINABILITY   9.           
Meeting Date: 05/07/2018  

Subject: RECEIVE update from the County’s Sustainability Coordinator.
Submitted For: John Kopchik, Director, Conservation & Development Department 
Department: Conservation & Development
Referral No.: N/A  

Referral Name: N/A 
Presenter: Jody London, DCD Contact: Jody London (925)674-7871

Referral History:
RECEIVE update from the County’s Sustainability Coordinator.

Referral Update:
This report provides an update to the Ad Hoc Sustainability Committee on the work of the
County’s Sustainability Coordinator since the Committee last met on March 26, 2018. Key
activities during this period are listed below. 

Hosted internal kickoff meeting for the Renewable Resource Potential Study at the end of
March and working regularly with Meister Consultants. We will hold a first stakeholder
meeting on May 24, 10:30 - 12:00. If there are individuals or organizations the Supervisors
would like us to invite, please let us know.
Continued collaborating with the Contra Costa Transportation Authority (CCTA) on
funding to support development of an Electric Vehicle Readiness Blueprint. CCTA was
notified in early April that they did not receive the California Energy Commission (CEC)
grant. The Contra Costa application was ranked fourth for the Northern California Region,
and the CEC is making only three awards in each of the three regions. The Contra Costa
application scored higher than some of the winning proposals in other regions. CCTA
expects to hear about the CalTrans grant in May. 
Supported the Sustainability Commission by working on the agenda for a retreat, facilitating
the April meeting of the Commission, and facilitating a meeting for Sustainability
Commission members with Public Works staff who are developing a polystyrene
(Stryofoam) ban. The April meeting included a status report from MCE and a presentation
on the North Richmond Urban Greening and Resiliency project.
Received notification that the County has been selected as a host for a CivicSpark Fellow
for the 2018-2019 Service Year. The Civic Spark Fellow will be sponsored by the Health
Services Department and the Department of Conservation and Development. 
Advertised vacancy in the Education, At-Large seat on the Sustainability Commission, and
reviewed applications received by the deadline of April 24. The Ad Hoc Committee on
Sustainability will interview candidates at this May 7 meeting.
Initiated discussion with public information officers in other County departments regarding



Initiated discussion with public information officers in other County departments regarding
a countywide communication strategy on sustainability, as directed by the Ad Hoc
Committee on Sustainability at its March meeting. The Sustainability Coordinator is
participating in a newly formed working group of the Urban Sustainability Directors
Network (USDN) on community engagement; the USDN group is well-timed to inform the
work in Contra Costa County.
Participated in Earth Day events hosted by the Pittsburg Unified School District and Cal
State East Bay, Concord campus.
Submitted letters of interest to the Bay Area Air Quality Management District for two
proposals for Climate Protection Grants, one in the Reducing GHGs from Existing Buildings
category and one in the Innovative Strategies category. The proposals are due May 11.
Collaborated with County staff working on topics including land use and transportation,
hazardous materials, green business program, economic development, Planning Integration
Team for Community Health (PITCH), codes, solid waste, energy.
Participated in regional activities.

Recommendation(s)/Next Step(s):
RECEIVE update from the County’s Sustainability Coordinator.

Fiscal Impact (if any):
None.

Attachments
No file(s) attached.


	Agenda
	2_APPROVE Record of Action for meeting for March 26, 2018, meeting of the Ad Hoc Committee on Sustainability. 
	2_ATT_01-22-18 SUS-COMM Mtg Minutes
	4_INTERVIEW candidates for the vacancy in the At-Large, Education_Research seat on the Sustainability Commission.
	4_ATT_Susan Rideout Application
	4_ATT_Pierre Bull Application
	4_ATT_Kimberly Hazard Application
	5_PROVIDE DIRECTION to staff regarding development of a Distributed Energy Resource Plan for County facilities.  
	5_ATT_DER Plan - Draft
	Contra Costa County Distributed Energy Resources Plan
	What is Distributed Energy Resources (DER)?

	Distributed Energy Resources in Contra Costa County Operations
	Photovoltaics (PV)
	Additional PV Activities

	Energy Efficiency
	Electric Vehicles
	Energy Storage
	Automated Demand Response

	Direction from the Board

	6_CONSIDER staff report on strategies for reducing greenhouse gas emissions associated with warehouse facilities in the unincorporated County
	7_DISCUSS and RECOMMEND to the Board of Supervisors a candidate for the At-Large, Education_Research seat on the Sustainability Commission
	8_RECEIVE Report from Sustainability Commission Chair.
	9_RECEIVE update from the County_s Sustainability Coordinator.

